
OREM ARTS COUNCIL MEETING  
NOVEMBER 20, 2015 – 12:00 P.M. 
OREM CITY CENTER – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
Attending:  
Orem Arts Council:   Cassandra Barney, Margaret Black (City Council Representative), 
Cindy Clark, Cody Clark, Cody Hale, Debby Lauret, Barry Merrell, Nancy Petersen, 
Peggy Philbrick, John Reinhard,  Adam Robertson and Ray Smith  
 
Staff:  Charlene Crozier and Christie Nuttall 
 
Absent:  Kate Monson and Joseph Sorensen 
 
Conducting:  Cody Hale  
 
1. Review and approve meeting minutes from October 16, 2015 
a. The minutes from the October 16, 2015 meeting were reviewed.  Ms. Philbrick made 
a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Lauret seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved unanimously.    
 
2. Notes of recognition or appreciation from the Arts Council 
a. A thank you note was written to Margaret Black for her service as City Council liaison.   
 
3.  OAC meeting schedule for 2016 
a. Mr. Reinhard made a motion to adopt the proposed schedule.  Mr. Smith seconded 
the motion.  The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
4.  Plan Dance activity 
a. Mr. Hale read the email he had received from Ms. Monson, informing the Council that 
the difficulty with scheduling the event lies in getting a location to perform at the 
universities.  She said March is looking like it will be most possible.  Ms. Monson will 
keep the Council apprised of progress.  The Council discussed the matter and agreed 
that March would work better than November. 
 
5.  Preparation for City Council presentation Dec. 8  
Mr. Hale said we will do a presentation to the City Council on December 8th.  Ms. 
Crozier said they have asked that it be a fairly short presentation, of about ten minutes.  
She said we can use slides, or even just having a conversation is fine also.  Ms. Lauret 
asked if anyone has pictures.  Ms. Philbrick said she has some from Summerfest, Mr. 
Hale has pictures from “Play in a Day,” and Ms. Crozier has photos from the Jam 
session.  Mr. Hale asked the Council to email photos to him at cody@haletheater.org  
by Dec. 1st and he will make a PowerPoint presentation.  Ms. Clark suggested 
advertising our January event at the City Council meeting.  We should also present the  

mailto:cody@haletheater.org


OREM ARTS COUNCIL MEETING  
NOVEMBER 20, 2015 – 12:00 P.M. 
OREM CITY CENTER – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
PAGE 2 OF 5 
 
Create! logo, and our concept of participatory events the whole City can get involved in, 
and have a great time at.  Ms. Crozier asked if someone is working on a logo design.  
Ms. Philbrick said she had an idea, inspired by the City’s quarterly newsletter.  They put 
a cancer ribbon as the “R”on the Orem logo.  She said the Rec Center kept the City 
logo and added their own twist.  She proposed we keep the City logo and add our own 
twist.  She suggested we could make the moon bigger and write Create! in it, or have 
the word become the mountains, and then put Orem Arts Council below it.  Ms. Crozier 
displayed the City logo and the Council discussed it.  Ms. Crozier will have Mr. Wolfley 
work on the logo.  Ms. Black complimented Ms. Philbrick for her idea.  Mr. Hale asked 
for other items to present to the City Council.  Mr. Reinhard suggested we tell them 
where we are in relation to our Strategic Plan.  We could mention the ongoing stage 
series, including last year’s Jenny Oaks Baker concert and the Summerfest lineup.  Mr. 
Reinhard said part of the strategic plan is to strengthen the Storytelling Festival to 
become a national player.  Ms. Crozier said we may have to revisit this next year 
because the Arts Council hasn’t focused on that element this year.  She said of course, 
everyone continues to work toward that goal.  They’ve done a grant between the City of 
Orem and Timpanogos Storytelling Festival to become a part of the POPS group of the 
State Department of Education, which is a core group of fine arts from throughout Utah.  
It includes everything from Ballet West to the Utah Shakespearean Festival, to Utah 
Opera, and they did an RFP to expand the group a bit.  Now we receive an annual block 
of money to take that art form into schools in Vernal, in Price, trying to hit every school 
in Utah within a five year period.  They’ve been doing a great job with it.  The students 
really love it and there is a curriculum component that teachers have been participating 
in.  We’ve also been able to use it to bring more students to the site of the Festival.  So 
the program continues to grow, due a lot to TSI and their grant writing and other things 
like that.  Ms. Crozier said if that is where the Council would like to focus, she could get 
additional information.  She said the Storytelling Festival could do their own 
presentation to the City Council, but that she didn’t see how the Arts Council could 
report on that.  Ms. Clark said we should share the Orem Stories project with the City 
Council.  As part of his presentation, Mr. Hale will give them information about this being 
our next activity.  Ms. Crozier suggested sharing with them that Brandon Stocksdale 
came and presented the State Street plan to the Council, that they discussed the Arts 
District elements.  The City Council meeting starts at 6:00 pm.  Ms. Barney said she 
can’t be there, but noted we need to mention we have changed our focus from providing 
entertainment to making our activities interactive.  Mr. Hale noted when he went to 
Mountain West Arts Conference, and told the leaders about our participatory approach, 
they were excited and wanted reports on it.  Ms. Crozier said she would like to see their 
grant funding reflect their excitement.  Mr. Hale again asked for any pictures, and asked 
members to attend. 
  



OREM ARTS COUNCIL MEETING  
NOVEMBER 20, 2015 – 12:00 P.M. 
OREM CITY CENTER – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
PAGE 3 OF 5 
 
6. Create! Supported by Orem Arts Council – events, logo update and discussion   
a.   Mr. Hale noted that the Council has pretty well discussed the logo update, and 
asked if there was any other input.  Ms. Crozier said if this is the direction the Arts 
Council wants to continue in, presenting vs. participatory, we need to start thinking 
about our annual grant from the State and structuring events for the coming year, 
starting July 1-June 30.  She suggested fleshing out a roadmap to speak to in the grant, 
in early meetings of the year.  We don’t want people to feel like their hands are 
completely tied by the grant, but we do have to suggest how the grant funds will be 
used.  She said it is her understanding we still intend to use the grant funding for the 
stage series in the summer and that does take a bit of it.  She asked the Council to think 
of that over the break and address it in the early part of the year. We want to write the 
grant appropriately.  She said there are other things we can do for fundraising.  Mr. Hale 
noted we are pretty much in charge of the summer stage series which is presenting, so 
we are doing both.  Mr. Hale said we have thrown out Arts Council Presents in favor of 
a participatory event which we call Create!  Ms. Crozier said as we go into next year, if 
anyone has great ideas for enhancing citizen involvement on Monday nights, we are 
looking for those.  We had a great lineup last year, thanks to Ray Smith and others who 
participated in the past, but there is always room to grow.  Mr. Hale mentioned the 
animation idea of Mr. Reinhard’s.  Ms. Clark asked if we can discuss the Orem Stories 
activity.  She said she’s been to two junior highs and high schools, and said hopefully 
we can have a lot more secondary participation.  She said she loves the time of the year 
we’re doing it, because it gives the students time to do something.  Ms. Clark expressed 
appreciation to Ms. Crozier and Ms. Buttars for making the posters to distribute before 
Thanksgiving break.  She said right after Christmas break we’ll be having the event, and 
she said she knows we’ll get submissions of artwork, photography, and dioramas from 
Orem history.  Ms. Clark has gotten the elementary and Jr. high schools, but is still 
working on the high schools.  She displayed a flyer she distributed which is a call for 
entries (attached).   Ms. Barnhart and Ms. Clark brainstormed today giving ribbons for 
Jr. and high school, but not elementary because all their artwork is great.  Ms. Clark 
said one of the ideas for the activity could be Ms. Barnhart would have her daughter 
there in her ballet costume and could be sketching her.  It could become a model 
session for the high school kids.  Another idea was to have Mayor Brunst come and be 
a model, the kids could sketches of him, and he could pick one and buy it.  The Council 
liked their ideas.  Ms. Crozier asked if we could lock up the details.  Mr. Reinhard asked 
if there was any private sponsorship money.  Ms. Clark said the high school students 
would do it for ribbons, and last year we made some real cool certificates.  She said 
they can put it on their resume.  Ms. Lauret asked if James Christensen could come and 
judge, that it would lend prestige.  Ms. Barnhart will check.  Ms. Clark said last year the 
high school students were unhappy that their artwork was displayed only for a day.  Ms. 
Ostraff hung them creatively, and they will be up for three weeks this year.  Ms. Clark   



OREM ARTS COUNCIL MEETING  
NOVEMBER 20, 2015 – 12:00 P.M. 
OREM CITY CENTER – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
PAGE 4 OF 5 
 
will have statements about Orem residents, past or present, living or deceased.  Ms. 
Crozier asked if the high schools will be doing such large size entries this year.  Ms. 
Clark said no.  Ms. Clark will follow up.  Mr. Reinhard asked that we keep a history of 
the winners.  b. Ms. Crozier suggested we talk about the OAC website.  Mr. Merrell 
asked who maintains the website.  Ms. Crozier asked if there was a question about 
whether the OAC wants to maintain their own website or fold into the City website.  She 
mentioned that many links to other sites have changed.  Mr. Reinhard said we should 
have it separate to keep it up to date and maintain it but still have it linked, as opposed 
to having to have someone in the City who is busy with other projects have to do it.  
That way we could make immediate changes.  It was suggested Mr. Reinhard could do 
that.  He said he would be happy to help.  Mr. Clark explained there is a site available, 
and we just need to decide what we want to put on it.  Someone asked who has been in 
charge of it.  Mr. Clark said the Library has been doing most of it.  Ms. Crozier said 
there was a question whether for events, if the website is the way to go, or continue to 
build the Facebook, Twitter, Instagram accounts.  She said we are kind of stalled there 
too.  We maintain the calendar and add things to it as we have them, and it does need 
to be updated.  There’s a whole lot of information that is well intended, but is large in 
scope, and asked whether it is helpful to artists.  Ms. Barney said we should have 
photos of what we’ve accomplished on the website as a historical element, but that our 
social media is what people get to see.  Mr. Reinhard said it would be easy to create a 
feed on the website to pull in what’s coming up on the OAC, we can make that part of 
the webpage.  If someone comes out they can see what we want to highlight, as well as 
what is coming through the feed, whether Facebook, Twitter or Instagram.  If we had an 
Instagram feed, we could take pictures right there at the event and they would just start 
popping up on the page.  He said to add the picture we just need someone to have the 
rights, they don’t even need to touch the website.  Ms. Black asked who is in charge of 
this, whether we had someone on the Council or just the Library.  Mr. Clark said he 
agreed to be in charge, but has had no direction.  Ms. Crozier said we have agreed we 
need experts in these areas.  Ms. Lauret said we should have a small committee get 
together and decide what needs to stay and what needs to go on the website.  Ms. 
Black suggested Mr. Reinhard and Mr. Clark look at it and come back with 
recommendations, by the first of the year.  Everyone is asked to look at the website at 
arts.orem.org, and come back with suggestions.  Ms. Crozier said our Instagram 
account is Orem Arts Council, the Facebook page is Orem Arts Council.  She said she 
would give the Council members the Instagram information to add to it, and the 
password is: oremarts. 
 
Ms. Barney left the meeting at 12:13 p.m. 
 
7. Possibility of Arts survey of City 
a. Continued. 



OREM ARTS COUNCIL MEETING  
NOVEMBER 20, 2015 – 12:00 P.M. 
OREM CITY CENTER – CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
PAGE 5 OF 5 
 
8. Other 
Ms. Philbrick said there are definite changes in the air at Summerfest that will affect our 
stage.  Ms. Crozier said they want to make it more impactful on residents who want to 
participate.  She said there’s a feeling that the weekend is too compact; they’d like to 
expand it into the other days of that week.  Some ideas were a family carnival day 
without all the other booths being open on a Thursday night, a storytelling event, 
expanding some events to SCERA Park and Orem High School.  Ms. Crozier said it 
would be great to move the baby contest away from Saturday at the Senior Center.  
They would look at reconfiguring the location of some current events, and would like to 
add events, such as a teen activity, perhaps a movie set up at the SCERA pool (Jaws!).  
Ms. Philbrick suggested a passport idea, that families receive stamps at different family 
friendly sites, increasing family togetherness, getting out and exploring the community, 
and increasing participants’ fitness by walking.  The ideas are pretty conceptual right 
now, and they may have to expand the committee to take on additional responsibilities.  
They are hoping the Arts Council will program the stage for the entertainment in the 
park.  They had a great headliner last year in Ryan Shupe.  They would like to continue 
the larger concert.  Ms. Black asked Mr. Smith about the possibility of getting David 
Archuletta.  Ms. Crozier said a sponsor is interested in participating.  She said Mr. 
Harkness was great at fundraising.  Ms. Philbrick said they are looking for ideas for a 
grand marshall and a theme for the January meeting.  Please give any ideas to Ms. 
Peterson and Mr. Sorensen.  2015’s theme was “Dream Big.”   
b.  Mr. Reinhard said although the Arts area for the State Street Master Plan is 25 years 
away, there is a building north of the Scera Shell parking lot for sale.  He asked if the 
City has any plans to effect this, or if we just wonder if it will happen.  He suggested 
maybe we could work up a private partnership, ie, Thanksgiving Point Orem.  Ms. Black 
said this is the first she knew of it being for sale.   
c.  Ms. Lauret thanked all who supported her in her campaign.  She said she hopes to 
get assigned to the Arts Council, and asked if anyone has a concern to please email 
her. 
 
9. Adjournment 
a. The next meeting will be held January 15, 2016 at 12:00 p.m. 
b. Mr. Merrill made a motion to adjourn.  Ms. Philbrick seconded the motion.  The 
Council voted unanimously to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 12:59 p.m.   
 
 
 
Approved: January 15, 2016   ______________________________ 
       Christie Nuttall, Associate Librarian 
 


